94學年度指考
[image: image1.png]



提示: 

指定科目考試完畢後，高中同學決定召開畢業後的第一次同學會，妳被公推負責主辦。請將你打算籌辦的活動寫成一篇短文。文分成兩段，第一段詳細介紹同學會的時間、地點及活動內容，第二段則說明採取這種活動方式的理由。
張智淵                     2010.06.09

I want to hold a class reunion on July 7th. In that time, everyone is free and has time to come. for the place, I would like to choose AJ restaurant where we can eat delicious food, talk to each other and stay for a longer time. During the class reunion, everyone talks about their feelings and time being with the teachers and the classmates. After the meal, we will have a big cake to celebrate the friendship and the thankforness that we have the chance to be here. 

I think class reunion are important because some of my classmates just have this chance to get together with one another. They are busy with their work and don’t usually have time. At school, we don’t have much time to know more about each other. Because of this, we can use the class reunions to let everyone have the chance to talk about the life outside the school to the person they didn’t have the chance to talk to before. When you buy a cake, it will make people sweet and warm.

潤飾過的版本(1)
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提示: 

指定科目考試完畢後，高中同學決定召開畢業後的第一次同學會，妳被公推負責主辦。請將你打算籌辦的活動寫成一篇短文。文分成兩段，第一段詳細介紹同學會的時間、地點及活動內容，第二段則說明採取這種活動方式的理由。
張智淵               2010.06.09

I want to hold a class reunion on the seventh of July. At that time, everyone will be free and will have the time to come. For the venue I would like to choose the AJ Restaurant where we can eat delicious food, talk to each other and stay for a longer time. During the class reunion, everyone will be encouraged to talk about their feelings and their time being with teachers and classmates. After the meal, we will enjoy a large cake to celebrate our friendship and for being thankful that we had the opportunity to be here.

I think class reunions are important because some of my classmates just have this one chance to get together with one another for they are busy with their work and usually have no spare time. At school, we also have little time to get to know more about each other, because of this, we can use the class reunions to let everyone have the chance to chat about life outside of school to students they didn’t have the chance to talk to before. Hopefully the cake will make everyone sweet and warm.

潤飾過的版本(2)
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提示: 

指定科目考試完畢後，高中同學決定召開畢業後的第一次同學會，妳被公推負責主辦。請將你打算籌辦的活動寫成一篇短文。文分成兩段，第一段詳細介紹同學會的時間、地點及活動內容，第二段則說明採取這種活動方式的理由。
張智淵               2010.06.09
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I am going to hold a class reunion party at 12 pm, on July 7th  (A class reunion party is going to be held at 12 pm, on July 7th).The venue I choose is AJ restaurant where we can enjoy delicious sea food while enjoying the unique outdoor garden. Also, because the venue is located near the ocean, we can take a walk along the beach or swim in the ocean after the meal. During the class reunion party, everyone is expected to briefly share your experience since leaving. This brief talk would include personal feelings and thoughts about classmates and teachers. After the meal, we will share a big cake to celebrate our reunion. 

The class reunion party is a chance to spend quality time together. At school, we didn’t have time to have a good talk with each other due to our busy study schedules. As a result, some of us barely know each other. At the class reunion party; however, we can sit back and catch up. Also, we can use this chance to update each other’s current situation. July the 7th is chosen as the date because the second entrance examination will be finished by then. So, most of our classmates should be free to attend the class reunion party. The shape of the cake will be round. In Chinese, round stands for “reunion”. Also, the taste of the cake is sweet. I hope that we can reunite in a sweet atmosphere.
Grammar analysis


The venue I choose is AJ restaurant where we can enjoy delicious sea food while enjoying the unique outdoor garden.
(1)The venue is AJ restaurant.

(2)I choose the venue.

(3)We can enjoy delicious sea food there (at AJ restaurant).

(4)We are enjoying the unique outdoor garden.
第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『venue』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(5)I choose which
為將兩句結合成一句複句，因此須要將關係代名詞「which」前移

(5)     (關係代名詞「which」前移)

(6)which I choose
(1)+(6)

(7)The venue (which) I choose is AJ restaurant.

(關係子句)restrictive

(關係代名詞which作受詞，須往前移，因此可以省略) (旋元佑文法 252-255)

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
第(3)和第(7)有個重複的交集點『AJ restaurant』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(8)we can enjoy delicious sea food where
為將兩句結合成一句複句，因此須要將關係代名詞「where」前移

(8)     (關係代名詞「where」前移)

(9)where we can enjoy delicious sea food
(7)+(9)

(10)The venue (which) I choose is AJ restaurant where we can enjoy delicious sea food.

(關係子句)restrictive

(關係代名詞which作受詞，須往前移，因此可以省略) (旋元佑文法 252-255)

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
(10)+(4)

The venue I choose is AJ restaurant where we can enjoy delicious sea food while we are enjoying the unique outdoor garden.
連接詞   (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)

Also, because the venue is located near the ocean, we can take a walk along the beach or swim in the ocean after the meal.

(1)We can take a walk along the beach or swim in the ocean after the meal.
(2)The venue is located near the ocean.
(1)+(2)

(3)We can take a walk along the beach or swim in the ocean after the meal because the venue is located near the ocean.

連接詞 (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.236-237)
(4)Because the venue is located near the ocean, we can take a walk along the beach or swim in the ocean after the meal.

During the class reunion party, everyone is expected to briefly share your experience since leaving.

(1)Everyone is expected something during the class reunion party.

(2)You should briefly share your experience.

(3)You left (school).

(1)     (倒裝)

(4)During the class reunion party, everyone is expected something.
(2)+(3)                    leaving 
(5)You should briefly share your experience since you left (school).                           連接詞 (副詞子句)
 (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)

第(4)句的『something』指的就是第(5)句的整句，因此可將第(5)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(4)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(5)   (變成名詞子句)

(6)that you should briefly share your experience since leaving
(4)+(6)     (to)  

(4)During the class reunion party, everyone is expected that you 
  to

should briefly share your experience since leaving.
         (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
            
After the meal, we will share a big cake to celebrate our reunion.

(1)We will share a big cake after the meal.

(2)We can celebrate our reunion. 

(1)     (倒裝)

(3)After the meal, we will share a big cake.

(3)+(2)

(4)After the meal, we will share a big cake so that(in order that) 
   to                                   連接詞
we can celebrate our reunion.
(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)

The class reunion party is a chance to spend quality time together.

(1)The class reunion party is a chance.

(2)We can spend quality time together. 

(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that we can spend quality time together
(1)+(3)               to
(4)The class reunion party is a chance that we can spend quality time together.                    (名詞子句)當同位格

 (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)

At school, we didn’t have time to have a good talk with each other due to our busy study schedules.

(1)We didn’t have time at school due to our busy study schedules.

(2)We could have a good talk with each other then. 

(1)     (倒裝)

(3)At school, we didn’t have time due to our busy study schedules.

第(3)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『time和then(time就是then)』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(4)we could have a good talk with each other when
為將兩句結合成一句複句，因此須要將關係代名詞「when」前移

(4)     (關係代名詞「when」前移)

(5)when we could have a good talk with each other
(3)+(5)              to

(6)At school, we didn’t have time when we could have a good talk with each other due to our busy study schedules.

(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)

Also, we can use this chance to update each other’s current situation.

(1)We can use this chance.

(2)We can update each other’s current situation. 

(1)+(2)            to
(3)We can use this chance in order that we can update each other’s current situation.         連接詞   (副詞子句)
 (旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)


July the 7th is chosen as the date because the second entrance examination will be finished by then.
(1)July the 7th is chosen as the date.

(2)The second entrance examination will be finished by then.
(1)+(2)            
(3)July the 7th is chosen as the date because the second entrance examination will be finished by then. 連接詞   (副詞子句)

          (旋元佑文法 p.236-237)


I hope that we can reunite in a sweet atmosphere.
(1)I hope something.

(2)We can reunite in a sweet atmosphere.
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that we can reunite in a sweet atmosphere
(1)+(3)     (to)  

(4)I hope (that) we can reunite in a sweet atmosphere.

         (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
96學年度指考

你能想像一個沒有電(electricity)的世界嗎？請寫一篇文章，第一段描述我們的世界沒有了電之後，會是甚麼樣子，第二段說明這樣的世界是好是壞，並舉例解釋原因。
許官平                        2010.06.10

Now, the electricity is important. But we have not the electricity, we won’t turn on the light that the city be dark. When we have not the electricity, we can’t use washing machinism tha twe have to wach the clothes by ourselves, we can’t use air conditioner that we will be hot in the summer, we can’t drive cars that we go a great distance away place by riding bike, we can’t use the cell phone that we can’t talk something to anywhere, so we just can use groundless words, we can’t watch TV that we just can read newspaper, and we can’t do many things for having not the electricity.

We have the electricity which is very convenient. But the tainting is much for our earth. Then we use too much electricity, an earth will be terrible. And we will be trouble in our life. We have to do anything by ourselves. So, we have the electricity or not, they are all of good and bad.

潤飾過的版本

96學年度指考

你能想像一個沒有電(electricity)的世界嗎？請寫一篇文章，第一段描述我們的世界沒有了電之後，會是甚麼樣子，第二段說明這樣的世界是好是壞，並舉例解釋原因。
許官平                        2010.06.10

If our world did not have electricity, life would be very different from what it is now (life would be very inconvenient). It would be dark outside after sunset as lights could not be turned on. Clothes would have to be washed by hand instead of using washing machines. During summer, people would feel very uncomfortable because air conditioners could not be used. Oil would not be easily accessible because all the drilling machines and gas stations could not operate. Long distance traveling would be very difficult because cars, ships, and trains could not function without oil. Other than walking, riding bikes would be the most popular way to travel. Landline phones and cell phones would stop functioning. As a result, instead of using phones to talk to people far away, pigeons carrying messages might be one of the options available. Forget about TV and radio. Newspapers might be available, but the cost of producing newspapers would be high and their volumes would be very low because they would have to be printed by hand instead of machines.

Electricity does bring convenience to our lives in such areas as traveling, entertainment, food, education and much more. On the other hand, generating electricity also causes pollution to the earth. Traditional power plants produce a lot of dust, and nuclear power plants produce nuclear contamination. They are all hazards to our health. Therefore, the more electricity we use, the more polluted the earth will become. Bad things always accompany good things. That’s the rule.
Grammar analysis


If our world did not have electricity, life would be very different from what it is now.
(1)Our world did not have electricity.

(2)Life would be very different from the life.

(3)It is the life now.

第(2)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『the life』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(4)it is which now
為將兩句結合成一句複句，因此須要將關係代名詞「which」前移

(4)     (關係代名詞「which」前移)

(5)which it is now
(2)+(5)

(6)Life would be very different from the life which it is now.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)

(7)Life would be very different from the life which it is now.
(the life which = what)

(8)Life would be very different from what it is now.

(賴世雄英文文法(上) p.177-180)(旋元佑文法 259-262)
(1)+(8)

(9)If  our world did not have electricity, life would be very 
連接詞 (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.235-236)
different from what it is now.

It would be dark outside after sunset as lights could not be turned on. 


(1)It would be dark outside after sunset.

(2)Lights could not be turned on.
(1)+(2)

(3)It would be dark outside after sunset as  lights could not be turned on.                      連接詞 (副詞子句)
 (旋元佑文法 p.236-237)

Clothes would have to be washed by hand instead of using washing machines.

(1)Clothes would have to be washed by hand instead of something.

(2)People use washing machines.

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。惟因第(1)句中『something』的前面有介係詞『of』，須借用『the fact』來形成同位格。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that people use washing machines
(1)+(6)       

(4)Clothes would have to be washed by hand instead of the fact 
  (people’s) using

that people use washing machines.   

(名詞子句)(當the fact 的同位格)

(＊＊也可解釋為＊＊)

(5)Clothes would have to be washed by hand instead of the fact
       (people’s) using

which is that people use washing machines.         

(關係子句)  (名詞子句) (當前面關係子句的補語)

(旋元佑文法 p.215, 340-341, 408-409, 414) (常春藤英文文法(上) p.21-25)
            
During summer, people would feel very uncomfortable because air conditioners could not be used.
(1)People would feel very uncomfortable during summer.

(2)Air conditioners could not be used. 

(1)    (倒裝)

(3)During summer, people would feel very uncomfortable.

(3)+(2)

(4)During summer, people would feel very uncomfortable because air conditioners could not be used.                   連接詞

(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.236-237)


Oil would not be easily accessible because all the drilling machines and gas stations could not operate.

(1)Oil would not be easily accessible.

(2)All the drilling machines and gas stations could not operate. 

(1)+(2)

(3)Oil would not be easily accessible because all the drilling 

連接詞
machines and gas stations could not operate.                      (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.236-237))

Long distance traveling would be very difficult because cars, ships, and trains could not function without oil.
(1)Long distance traveling would be very difficult.

(2)Cars, ships, and trains could not function without oil.
(1)+(2)

(3)Long distance traveling would be very difficult because cars, 

連接詞

ships, and trains could not function without oil.                      (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.236-237))

Other than walking, riding bikes would be the most popular way to travel.

(1)Something would be the most popular way other than something else.

(2)People ride bikes.
(3)People can travel.

(4)People walk. 

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(5)that people ride bikes
(1)+(5)    

            Riding

(6)That people ride bikes would be the most popular way other than something else.
(名詞子句)當主詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

第(1)句的『something else』指的就是第(4)句的整句，因此可將第(4)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something else』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(4)   (變成名詞子句)

(7)that people walk
(1)+(7)    

(8)Riding bikes would be the most popular way other than that 

     walking

people walk.
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
(8)    (倒裝)

(9)Other than walking, riding bikes would be the most popular way
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(10)that people can travel

(9)+(10)               
(11)Other than walking, riding bikes would be the most popular 
              to

way that people can travel.                    

(名詞子句)當同位格

 (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)

As a result, instead of using phones to talk to people far away, pigeons carrying messages might be one of the options available.
(1)Pigeons might be one of the options available instead of something.

(2)Pigeons carry messages.

(3)People use phones.

(4)People can talk to people far away.
(3)+(4)

                                       to

(5)People use phones so that(in order that) they can talk to people far away.                連接詞         (副詞子句)
(旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(5)句的整句，因此可將第(5)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。惟因第(1)句中『something』的前面有介係詞『of』，須借用『the fact』來形成同位格。
(5)   (變成名詞子句)

(6)that people use phones to talk to people far away
(1)+(6)       

(7)Pigeons might be one of the options available instead of the 
      (people’s) using

fact  that people use phones to talk to people far away.   

(名詞子句)(當the fact 的同位格)

(＊＊也可解釋為＊＊)

(8)Pigeons might be one of the options available instead of the 
              (people’s) using

fact  which is  that people use phones to talk to people far away.   

(關係子句)  (名詞子句) (當前面關係子句的補語)

第(8)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『Pigeons』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(9)which carry messages
(8)+(9)

               carrying

(10)Pigeons which carry messages might be one of the options available instead of using phones to talk to people far away.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
           (倒裝)
(11)Instead of using phones to talk to people far away, pigeons carrying messages might be one of the options available.


Newspapers might be available, but the cost of producing newspapers would be high and their volumes would be very low because they would have to be printed by hand instead of machines.
(1)Newspapers might be available.

(2)The cost of something would be high and their volumes would be very low.
(3)People produce newspapers.

(4)They would have to be printed by hand instead of machines.
第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。惟因第(2)句中『something』的前面有介係詞『of』，須借用『the fact』來形成同位格。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(5)that people produce newspapers
(1)+(6)       

                    (people’s) producing

(6)The cost of the fact that people produce newspapers would be 
(名詞子句)(當the fact 的同位格)

high and their volumes would be very low.
(＊＊也可解釋為＊＊)

                           (people’s) producing                         

(7)The cost of the fact which is that people produce newspapers         (關係子句)  (名詞子句) 
(當前面關係子句的補語)
would be high and their volumes would be very low.
(6)+(4)                                       

(8)The cost of producing newspapers would be high and their volumes would be very low because they would have to be 
連接詞
printed by hand instead of machines.                         (副詞子句)(旋元佑文法 p.236-237)
(1)+(8)                                       

(9)Newspapers might be available, but the cost of producing newspapers would be high and their volumes would be very low because they would have to be printed by hand instead of machines.

On the other hand, generating electricity also causes pollution to the earth.

(1)Something also causes pollution to the earth.
(2)People generate electricity.

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that people generate electricity
(2)+(3)    

            Generating

(4)That people generate electricity also causes pollution to the earth. (名詞子句)當主詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
94學年度指考

提示: 

指定科目考試完畢後，高中同學決定召開畢業後的第一次同學會，妳被公推負責主辦。請將你打算籌辦的活動寫成一篇短文。文分成兩段，第一段詳細介紹同學會的時間、地點及活動內容，第二段則說明採取這種活動方式的理由。
徐三原                     2010.06.10

Finaly！ We have graduated from senior high school. Our class will hold a class reunion. It is our first one. We hope that we can hold well. We have talked about who holds for long time. Finaly, I have to hold the class reunion. I deside that I hold it in next month first day, and every one has to prepare one delicious dish. We will cook and eat with together happily.

How come I want to use this way to hold it? Because, this way not only is meaningful activity but also can further ours feelings. I hope that I hold class reunion successful. And every one can enjoy the class reunion well.

潤飾過的版本

94學年度指考

提示: 

指定科目考試完畢後，高中同學決定召開畢業後的第一次同學會，妳被公推負責主辦。請將你打算籌辦的活動寫成一篇短文。文分成兩段，第一段詳細介紹同學會的時間、地點及活動內容，第二段則說明採取這種活動方式的理由。
徐三原               2010.06.10

We are going to hold a class reunion on July 1st. Everyone is expected to prepare one dish to bring and share at school together. After the meal, we will hold a three on three basketball competition. For those who do not enjoy active exercise, they may sit under the lemon trees and have a nice talk, which is just like the time when we were at school. Our home-room teacher, math teacher and science teacher have been invited and are expected to when we were at school our reunion. At the class reunion, we will have more time to chat with them, which is different from what it was when we were in school.

The reunion will be at school because it is cheaper to hold it there. We won’t have to rent a place or go to a restaurant. In addition, the school has large enough space plus it allows us to choose different kinds of exercising facilities also. In a restaurant, we could only sit and chat; but in school we can take a walk or exercise when we feel tired of sitting for a long period.
89年度學測
說明：1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

2.文長120字左右。

提示︰

請寫一篇英文作文，主題為 “Weight Loss”：以你個人或你熟悉的人(朋友、親戚)為例，說明造成這個人體重過重的原因，並提出你認為理想的解決之道。
陳振男                        2010.06.10

Two of my friends are very heavy. One of them is taller than other. The taller present is a boy. His name is Tsay Chun-Hung. He eat very much but her do exercise every day. Other is a girl. Her name is Wu Shuan-hui. She eat a lot and she sometimes do exercise. But now she is thinner than before, because she doing exercise a lot.

I think both of them have to exercise more and eating still less. And in a week do exercise three days, a day do thirty munit. It is “three three three”. Tsay Chun-hung loves exercise, but his is not thin. He has to do exercise more. Wu Shuan-hui do not like exercise, but she like eating. It is a bat habbit. She has to correct the habit.

潤飾過的版本

89年度學測
說明：1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

2.文長120字左右。

提示︰

請寫一篇英文作文，主題為 “Weight Loss”：以你個人或你熟悉的人(朋友、親戚)為例，說明造成這個人體重過重的原因，並提出你認為理想的解決之道。
陳振男                        2010.06.10

Two of my friends, Tsay, Chun-hung and Wu, Shuan-hui, are overweight. Tsay is a tall boy and Wu is a shorter girl. Both of them like to eat fatty and starchy food such as pork, fried chicken and potatoes. However, they rarely eat vegetables and fruit. They seldom exercise and do not like to walk. They usually ride motorcycles, take buses, or take taxies to get around. They drink a lot of soft drink such as Coke and Sprite; but seldom drink water.

If they want to lose weight, I think they should have to change their diet and lifestyles. Firstly, they should eat less fatty & starchy foods, and increase the consumption of fresh vegetables and fruit. Secondly, they should exercise more often. The amount of exercise should be at least thirty minutes a day, three days a week. It is noted as “Three, three, and three”, a slogan promoted by the Sports Affairs Council. Thirdly, they should walk to work, which only takes about 30 minutes, instead of riding motorcycles. Lastly, they should cut down on snacks and junk food consumption or even leave it out altogether.
Some people may think that genes determine one’s figure. It is true that genes determine one’s figure, but only to certain extent i.e. if only the person is unwilling to adopt a healthy diet and regular exercise. If however, the person tries to eat healthy & exercise regularly as mentioned above, their health and wellbeing will improve hence not allowing their genes to influence their body shape.
Grammar analysis


Two of my friends, Tsay, Chun-hung and Wu, Shuan-hui, are overweight.
(1)Two of my friends are overweight.
(2)Two of my friends are Tsay, Chun-hung and Wu, Shuan-hui.
第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『two of my friends』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(3)who are Tsay, Chun-hung and Wu, Shuan-hui
(1)+(3)

(4)Two of my friends, who are Tsay, Chun-hung and Wu, Shuan-hui, are overweight.  (關係子句)nonrestrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)

Both of them like to eat fatty and starchy food such as pork, fried chicken and potatoes.

(1)Both of them like something.

(2)They can eat fatty and starchy food.
(3)Fatty and starchy food is such as pork, fried chicken and potatoes.
第(1)句的『something else』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something else』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that they can eat fatty and starchy food
(1)+(4)    

                         to

(5)Both of them like that they can eat fatty and starchy food.     
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

第(5)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『fatty and starchy food』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(6)which is such as pork, fried chicken and potatoes
(5)+(6)

               carrying

(10)Both of them like to eat fatty and starchy food which is such as pork, fried chicken and potatoes.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)

They seldom exercise and do not like to walk.
(1)They seldom exercise and do not like something.

(2)They have to (must) walk. 

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that they must walk
(1)+(3)       

                                         to

(4)They seldom exercise and do not like that they must walk.
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
            

They usually ride motorcycles, take buses, or take taxies to get around.
(1)They usually ride motorcycles, take buses, or take taxies.

(2)They can get around. 

(1)+(2)

(3)They usually ride motorcycles, take buses, or take taxies so that 

                to

(in order that) they can get around.
連接詞     (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)


They drink a lot of soft drink such as Coke and Sprite.

(1)They drink a lot of soft drink.

(2)The soft drink is such as Coke and Sprite.
第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『soft drink』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(3)which is such as Coke and Sprite
(1)+(3)

               carrying

(4)They drink a lot of soft drink which is such as Coke and Sprite.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)

If they want to lose weight, I think they should have to change their diet and lifestyles.
(1)They want to lose weight.

(2)I think something.

(3)They should have to change their diet and lifestyles.
第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that they should have to change their diet and lifestyles
(1)+(4)                          

(5)I think (that) they should have to change their diet and lifestyles.     (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
(1)+(5)

(6)If  they want to lose weight, I think they should have to 
連接詞   (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.235-236)
change their diet and lifestyles.

It is noted as “Three, three, and three”, a slogan promoted by the Sports Affairs Council.
(1)It (the amount of exercise) is noted as “Three, three, and three”.

(2) “Three, three, and three” is a slogan.

(3)The slogan is promoted by the Sports Affairs Council.
第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『“Three, three, and three”』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(4)which is a slogan
(1)+(4)               

(5)It is noted as “Three, three, and three”, which is a slogan.
(關係子句)nonrestrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
第(5)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『slogan』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(6)which is a slogan
(1)+(4)               

(7)It is noted as “Three, three, and three”, a slogan which is promoted by the Sports Affairs Council.
(關係子句)nonrestrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)

They should walk to work, which only takes about 30 minutes, instead of riding motorcycles.
(1)They should walk instead of something.

(2)They can work.

(3)It (代表They should walk to work ) only takes about 30 minutes.
(4)They ride motorcycles.

 (1)

(5)Instead of something, they should walk.

(5)+(2)                           to
(6)Instead of something, they should walk in order that they can work.                               連接詞   (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)
 (6)

(7)They should walk to work instead of something.
第(7)句的『something』指的就是第(4)句的整句，因此可將第(4)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(7)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。惟因第(7)句中『something』的前面有介係詞『of』，須借用『the fact』來形成同位格。
(4)   (變成名詞子句)

(8)that they ride motorcycles
(1)+(6)                 (their) riding
(9)They should walk to work instead of the fact that they ride motorcycles.                            (名詞子句) 

                    (當the fact 的同位格)

(＊＊也可解釋為＊＊)

                                                (their)        (10)They should walk to work instead of the fact which is that hey 
riding                                  (關係子句)
ride motorcycles.                               

 (名詞子句) (當前面關係子句的補語)

(旋元佑文法 p.215, 340-341, 408-409, 414) (常春藤英文文法(上) p.21-25)
第(10)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『They should walk to work』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(11)which only takes about 30 minutes
(10)+(11)

               carrying

(12)They should walk to work, which only takes about 30 minutes, instead of riding motorcycles.    (關係子句)nonrestrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)

Some people may think that genes determine one’s figure.
(1)Some people may think something.

(2)Genes determine one’s figure.
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that genes determine one’s figure
(1)+(3)                 (their) riding
(4)Some people may think that genes determine one’s figure.
                       (名詞子句)當受詞
(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
87年度學測
說明：1.請依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

2.文長以120字左右為原則。

提示：

每個人在不同的情況下對雨可能有不同的感受。請寫一篇短文，敘述你在某一個下雨天的實際經歷或看到的景象，並據此敘述你對雨的感覺。

陳致仁                     2010.06.10

Raining day is great experience for me because it gives me a different feeling. When I was hit by rain, I felt so terrible because clothes was very wet.

I went home quickly. Rain became heavily, suddenly my schoolbag had a lot of rain so I worried about it very much. For a while I got home and changed my cloth quickly. I was very tired of running to home and thought it just rain’s kidding so I was not angry with them.

Rain can be a devil. For example :「typhoon」. It can hurt many people and our homeland. Many people are very afraid of it and don’t want to see it. In Taiwan, many typhoon hit Taiwan in summer and many people worry about them so I don’t like them and don’t want to see people was hurt by them.

潤飾過的版本

87年度學測
說明：1.請依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

2.文長以120字左右為原則。

提示：

每個人在不同的情況下對雨可能有不同的感受。請寫一篇短文，敘述你在某一個下雨天的實際經歷或看到的景象，並據此敘述你對雨的感覺。
陳致仁                     2010.06.10

Rainy days bring me different feelings. Drizzling rain can be romantic and inspiring. One time, my parents and I took a boat ride on Sun Moon Lake. It was drizzling; as a result, there were only a few boats in the wide open lake. The rain fluttered in the air because of the wind. When the rain touched the water, it only caused very little ripples and noises. It was very quiet except the sound from our peddling and talking. Occasionally, birds flew over our boat and made some clear sounds. Suddenly, I felt that I was back in ancient times. I could understand how lonely and depressed they were when those famous writers, politicians, and generals throughout history were expelled from capitals cities to the southern rural areas. 

Heavy rain can be annoying. Three years ago, my parents and I went to Marine Park in Hong Kong. It was a hot and humid summer day. By the time we finished visiting the park and waited for the bus to go back to the hotel, it started raining heavily. It was out in an open space; therefore, we all got soaked. It was late and we were in the middle of the long waiting line. We waited for almost 40 minutes in the heavy rain. By the time we returned to our hotel, we were all very tired. Fortunately, we did not catch a cold.

Rain can also be a devil. Some typhoons brought a lot of rain and caused serious landsides. Homes, farms, bridges and roads were destroyed. Even human lives were taken away by typhoons. Many people who live near rivers and mountains are frightened about the arrival of typhoons. I live in a safe, concrete building in Keelung. As a result, I don’t have to worry about the threat of typhoons. However, I don’t like to see people get hurt or killed because of typhoons. 

87年度學測
說明：1.請依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

2.文長以120字左右為原則。

提示：

每個人在不同的情況下對雨可能有不同的感受。請寫一篇短文，敘述你在某一個下雨天的實際經歷或看到的景象，並據此敘述你對雨的感覺。

游承勳                        2010.06.10

Raining day is a unforgettable experience because I may be soaked by rain and got cold. For example : one day, I was walking on the street. Suddenly, it rains, I was soaked by rain. I run right away. I changed clothes and drank hot tea or I will get cold.

Raining day was happened in many kinds. For example : sunshowers, a torrential rain, plum rains, a light rain, moist and a big torrential rain. I think that I like a light rain because it doesn’t make mudflows and landslides and doesn’t hurt my a homeland, either. I think that I hate a big torrential rain because it is not only make mudflows and landslides but also hurts my homeland.

潤飾過的版本

87年度學測
說明：1.請依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

2.文長以120字左右為原則。

提示：

每個人在不同的情況下對雨可能有不同的感受。請寫一篇短文，敘述你在某一個下雨天的實際經歷或看到的景象，並據此敘述你對雨的感覺。

游承勳                        2010.06.10

It is an unforgettable experience when I was soaked in heavy rain, fell, and almost got hit by a motorcycle. I went to Dan-Su with some friends on a hot summer afternoon. Not long after we arrived at the destination, thunders came, then showers followed right away. We were all soaked because it was a wide open space and the nearest building was about 300 meters away. We all ran toward the building. I was the fastest, so I was in front of the group. About 10 meters from the building, I stepped in a hole and fell. Almost at the same time, a motorcycle was riding toward me. The motorcycle rider braked sharply(hard) so that the brake made a grating sound. I was shocked when I realized that the wheel was only about 20 cm from my right leg. I felt cold from my heart and my body shivered uncontrollably.

After that experience, I don’t mind getting soaked in the rain if an umbrella or rain coat is not available. It makes me nervous when I have to run in the rain. If I really have to run in the rain, I usually take extra care and run slowly.
96學年度指考

你能想像一個沒有電(electricity)的世界嗎？請寫一篇文章，第一段描述我們的世界沒有了電之後，會是甚麼樣子，第二段說明這樣的世界是好是壞，並舉例解釋原因。
李佳鴻                        2010.06.10

When we can’t have electricity. It is not convenient to use the computer, watch TV, and a lot of things to result in businessmen can’t work with the Internet. Electricity is very important for everywhere people. There is not electricity in this world. Just morning we can see everything clean, but when daynight is coming. The world will be shrouded by darklight.

Now, let’s think about that when we can’t have electricity. It is just really for bad? I think that is not too bad. For example, thought we can’t use, the Internet to work, we can use newspapers to talk to everywhere people to know everythings. Now, there isn’t electricity for this society. It is really not convenient for businessmen.

潤飾過的版本

96學年度指考

你能想像一個沒有電(electricity)的世界嗎？請寫一篇文章，第一段描述我們的世界沒有了電之後，會是甚麼樣子，第二段說明這樣的世界是好是壞，並舉例解釋原因。
李佳鴻                        2010.06.10

If the world were suddenly without electricity, our lives would be made very inconvenient. Computers, lights, cell phones, plus all electronic devices could not be used without electricity. Therefore, business could not work through the Internet, phones, FAX, and PABX telephones. Watching movies and TV would be quite impossible. During day time, everything can easily be seen; however, when night comes, things could only be seen with the help of candles, oil fired torches, and oil lamps. Traffic lights would not be available, and there would be no cars on the streets also. Only horse-drawn carriages and animal drawn carriages would be available. Therefore, it would take few days by foot or carriages to go from Northern Taiwan to Southern Taiwan instead of taking less than two hours by high speed railway. 

Without electricity, for sure, our lives would be made inconvenient as mentioned previously; however, a world without electricity could also benefit our health. Our air would be cleaner if there were no cars running on the streets and aircraft in the skies. Without lights, people would go to bed earlier and wake up earlier; as a result, people should be healthier. Without cars and trains, people would have to walk or ride bikes when they wished to go anywhere; therefore, they would have more exercise and it would be better for their health.

Like a double-edged sword, things always have their positive and negative points. We have to live with that.

96學年度指考

你能想像一個沒有電(electricity)的世界嗎？請寫一篇文章，第一段描述我們的世界沒有了電之後，會是甚麼樣子，第二段說明這樣的世界是好是壞，並舉例解釋原因。
張智淵                        2010.06.17

There are some ways that we can make electricity. But, if these ways can not be used, what will the world be like? Air conditioner, refrigerators, radios, CD players…etc. All of these things can not be used. In the house, we don’t have lights. The only thing that can be used is candles. Computers can not work, so we have to write down things needed and send the letters to post office more often.

I think a world with no electricity will be a bad dream. First, people can not live without it. We feel like we are gonna die because maybe we could still be fine in the past, but now morden people are afraid of losing electricity. Second, everything can not go on. We want to cook dinner, but the cooker doesn’t work. We think it is the time to take a bath, but later we will find there is no hot water. We have to burn the wood to get fire to cook the food and make water warm. Because there is no enough light at night, we read books and newspapers, do the exercise, play the music and do our work only at daytime. Last, the technologies can not develop at all. If there is no electricity, they will not have the chance to try new things. It will be just like there is a devil on the world. We don’t want to stay with a devil and know God loves people, so all of us had better protect the electricity.
潤飾過的版本(1)

96學年度指考

你能想像一個沒有電(electricity)的世界嗎？請寫一篇文章，第一段描述我們的世界沒有了電之後，會是甚麼樣子，第二段說明這樣的世界是好是壞，並舉例解釋原因。
張智淵                        2010.06.17

There are many ways that we can make electricity. But, if these ways could no longer be used, what would the world be like? Air conditioners, refrigerators, radios, TV, CD players etc, all of these things couldn’t be used. In the house, we wouldn’t have AC or DC lights. Gas and candles would be the only things that could be used. Computers would not work, so we would have to write down needed things and send the letters through the post office.

A world without electricity would be like a bad dream. Firstly, most modern people cannot live without it. We may feel like it might be impossible because maybe it was fine in the past, but now modern people might be afraid to live without electricity. Secondly, many machines and services would no longer work. We might wish to cook dinner, but the electric frying pan or wok wouldn’t work. We might think it is time to take a bath, but then we would find there would be no hot water. We would have to burn wood to make a fire to cook the food and heat the water. Without electricity, there would be little light at night to read books, newspapers, play music so we would need to do these things during the daytime. Lastly, most technologies would be unable to develop at all. 
Without electricity, people would not have the chance to try new things. As we have lived with electricity for a couple of centuries it would be almost impossible for us to survive without it now so we would do well to protect electricity and our environment.
潤飾過的版本(2)

96學年度指考

你能想像一個沒有電(electricity)的世界嗎？請寫一篇文章，第一段描述我們的世界沒有了電之後，會是甚麼樣子，第二段說明這樣的世界是好是壞，並舉例解釋原因。
張智淵                        2010.06.17

There are many ways by which electricity can be generated. Imagine what the world would be like if all these ways did not work and as a result, we are without electricity. Air conditioners, refrigerators, radios, CD players, etc would not function. In houses, instead of lights, candles would be used as the illuminating equipment. Computers could not work, so we would have to write letters instead of using e-mails to communicate with someone.

I think a world without electricity would be a nightmare for a great majority of people. Firstly, a great majority of people cannot live without electricity. It may be fine in the old days; however, in modern days, most people are used to the kind of lifestyle which heavily depends on electricity. I can imagine that numerous people would feel it would be the end of the world if there was no electricity. Secondly, all the electronic devices could not function without electricity. When it is time to cook, we would suddenly realize that cookers could not work. When it is time to take a bath, we would realize that no hot water could be generated by heaters. Instead, we would have to burn wood to heat water. As there would be no lights at night, we could only read books and newspapers, do exercise, play music and do work during the day. Lastly, it would be difficult to develop new technologies without electricity. If there were no electricity, people would have fewer chances to try new things; as a result, it would be difficult to develop new technologies.

A world without electricity would just be like electricity being taken away by a devil. We all know that God loves people and we are all blessed by God. We deserve a world with electricity and no less. Therefore, we should better protect electricity from being taken away by the devil.
91年度指考



游雅雯                        2010.06.18
If I won two million dollars in lottery, I would help my father and the people who need help. Father is a hard-working person, but he get little money. So, I want to give him half of two million dollars. And the one million dollars I want to give the kids who don’t have father and mother.

Every morning, Father always go to work early. He always says that “We have to work hard, and the money will belong to you.” I think if I give him half of two million dollars, he may be very happy. And he would save it in the post office. When he need money he can take the money out. People who don’t have Dad and Mom is so pitiful. I am luckyer than any of tham, because I have a kind family. I think they need the money to do anything. So I will denate them this money.

I help everyone that can make me happy. As long as happy anything is good. So people needs help and we help them, we can get happy. Why don’t we always get happy?
潤飾過的版本

91年度指考


游雅雯                        2010.06.18
If I won two million dollars in lottery, I would help my father and orphans. (the orphaned children). I would give my father one million dollars. And for the remaining one million dollars, I would give it to orphans. (With the remaining one million dollars, I would give it to a children’s orphanage.)

(I think my) Father really deserves to have the one million dollars. He goes to work early in the morning and returns home late at night. When he gets home (after work), he is always very tired. Even though he works so hard, he does not earn much (money). Despite this(=In spite of this), father always encourages us (by telling us) that ‘as long as we work hard enough, money will come to our pockets eventually.’ Recently, one night after he returned from work, I suddenly realized that he added many wrinkles on his face and grey hair on his head. (he had many extra wrinkles on his face and he seemed to have more grey hair on his head.) The more I think about his wrinkles and grey hair, the more I would want to give him one million dollars. I believe that he would be very happy to have this money and save it in a bank or post office for emergency usages. He would feel more secured to have this money. (I’m sure he would feel more secure knowing he had this money.)

(I think) Orphans are one of the groups of people who need this money most. Orphans are less lucky than I because I have a sweet home and parents that love me very much, but they don’t. So, I would like to donate the remaining one million dollars to them. (I am a very lucky person. I have a comfortable home with parents who love me very much. Orphans are not as fortunate. This is why I would like to donate the remaining one million dollars to them.) I hope that the one million dollars could help them receive higher education and improve the living condition of their orphanages.

Helping people overcome difficulties could make them happy. Seeing the person I help becomes happy would make myself happy also. (Money helps people overcome difficulties in their lives, this could make them happy. I am rewarded when I see someone is happy.) It is true that money can’t buy happiness, but interestingly (enough), money can help make people happy.

91年度指考



方湘君                        2010.06.21

If I won two million dollars in lottery, I would help poor people have good life and for their children can go school.

Giving them help is advantage for their life, example they can spend those money to buy food and when they need, they also spend those money. But giving them help sometime is disadvantage for their life, because they will lazy when they obtain two million dollars.
When I won two million dollars in lottery, I will give them help after consider. I will think they whether have the competence that they can go work, if they can work, I won’t take my money to them.

Maybe they are very poor, I shouldn’t dubitation them, but if they say lie to obtain those money, then those people who really need those money, what should they do?

Because I drem I can spend those money on right way in my life, so I will take those money to poor people.
潤飾過的版本

91年度指考


方湘君                        2010.06.21

If I won two million dollars in the lottery, I would help people have better lives and their children have better education.

However, giving money to poor people has both positive and negative impacts. The money can help improve their lives. For instance, they can spend the money on food when they are hungry so that they no longer have to suffer from malnutrition. However, disadvantages always come along with advantages. Some poor people may become lazy and don’t want to work after they receive money. 

I would only give the money to someone who needs it most if I won two million dollars in the lottery. So, I would check the person’s background to decide whether I would give him (her) the money. I would not give the money to a poor person who lacks any intention to work even though capable. It doesn’t mean that I am not kind to poor people. The point is that I would like to help someone who deserves the help most.

Grammar analysis


If I won two million dollars in the lottery, I would help people have better lives and their children have better education.

(1)I won two million dollars in the lottery.

(2)I would help people something.

(3)They can have better lives and their children can have better education.

第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that they can have better lives and their children can have better education

(2)+(4)       (to)

(5)I would help people that they can have better lives and 

            (to)

their children can have better education.  
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(after『help』, we can use object + infinitive (with or without『to』) (Practical English Usage,  p.223)

(1)+(5)

(6)If  I won two million dollars in the lottery, I would help 
連接詞 (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.235-236)
people have better lives and their children have better education.


Giving money to poor people has both positive and negative impacts. 

(1)Something has both positive and negative impacts.
(2)One gives money to poor people.

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that one gives money to poor people
(1)+(3)    

          Giving

(4)That one gives money to poor people has both positive and negative impacts. (名詞子句)當主詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215, 336-337)

The money can help improve their lives.

(1)The money can help something.

(2)The money can improve their lives.

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that the money can improve their lives
(1)+(3)        (to)
(4)The money can help that the money can improve their lives.   

(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
(after『help』, we can use object + infinitive (with or without『to』) (Practical English Usage,  p.223)
            
They can spend the money on food when they are hungry so that they no longer have to suffer from malnutrition.

(1)They can spend the money on food.

(2)They are hungry.
(3)They no longer have to suffer from malnutrition.
(1)+(2)

(4)They can spend the money on food when they are hungry.
                              連接詞 (副詞子句)
 (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)
(4)+(3)

(5)They can spend the money on food when they are hungry 
so that they no longer have to suffer from malnutrition.
連接詞  (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.236-238)


Some poor people may become lazy and don’t want to work after they receive money.

(1)Some poor people may become lazy.
(2)Some poor people don’t want something. 
(3)Some poor people should work.

(4)They receive money.
第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(5)that some poor people should work
(2)+(5)            to
(6)Some poor people don’t want that they should work.   

(名詞子句)當受詞
(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
(6)+(4)

(7)Some poor people don’t want to work after they receive money. 連接詞 (副詞子句) 
(旋元佑文法 p. 234-235)
(1)+(7)

(7)Some poor people may become lazy and some poor people don’t want to work after they receive money.


I would only give the money to someone who needs it most if I won two million dollars in the lottery.
(1)I would only give the money to someone.

(2)Someone needs it most.

(3)I won two million dollars in the lottery.

第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『someone』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(4)who needs it most
(1)+(4)

(5)I would only give the money to someone who needs it most.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
(5)+(3)

(6)I would only give the money to someone who needs it most if 
I won two million dollars in the lottery.              連接詞 
(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.235-236)

I would check the person’s background to decide whether I would give him (her) the money.
(1)I would check the person’s background.

(2)I can decide something.

(3)Would I give him (her) the money?
(1)+(2)

(4)I would check the person’s background in order that (so that) I 
to                                   連接詞
can decide something.                      
(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)
第(4)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(4)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(5)whether I would give him (her) the money
(4)+(5)            
(6)I would check the person’s background to decide whether I would give him (her) the money.                 (名詞子句)當受詞
(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

I would not give the money to a poor person who lacks any intention to work even though capable.
(1)I would not give the money to a poor person.

(2)The poor person lacks any intention.

(3)He (she) should work.

(4)He (she) is capable.
第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『poor person』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(5)who lacks any intention
(1)+(5)               

(6)I would not give the money to a poor person who lacks any intention.                            (關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(7)that he (she) should work

(9)+(10)               
(8)I would not give the money to a poor person who lacks any 
                    to

intention that he (she) should work.
(名詞子句)當同位格 (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)
(1)+(2)

(9)I would not give the money to a poor person who lacks any intention to work even though he (she) is capable.
連接詞    (副詞子句)
 (旋元佑文法 p.238-239)

It doesn’t mean that I am not kind to poor people.

(1)It doesn’t mean something.

(2)I am not kind to poor people.

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that I am not kind to poor people
(1)+(3)    

(4)It doesn’t mean that I am not kind to poor people.

(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

The point is that I would like to help someone who deserves the help most.
(1)The point is something.

(2)I would like something.

(3)I can help someone.

(4)Someone deserves the help most.
第(3)和第(4)有個重複的交集點『someone』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(4)     (變成關係子句)

(5)who deserves the help most
(3)+(5)

(6)I can help someone who deserves the help most.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(6)句的整句，因此可將第(6)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(6)   (變成名詞子句)

(7)that I can help someone who deserves the help most
(2)+(7)            
                  to 

(8)I would like that I can help someone who deserves the help most.        (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(8)句的整句，因此可將第(8)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(8)   (變成名詞子句)

(9)that I would like to help someone who deserves the help most
(1)+(9)            
                  to 

(10)The point is that I would like to help someone who deserves the help most.   (名詞子句)當補語(旋元佑文法 p. 214-215)
86年度學測

說明：1.請依下列提示寫一篇英文作文在「答案卷」上。

2.文長以120字左右為原則，共20分。

提示：

你同意 “Laughter is better than medicine” 這種說法嗎？以你自己或親朋好友的經驗或你所知道的故事為例，加以說明。你的論點無論是正面或是反面都不會影響你的得分。
陳振男                     2010.06.23

I agree about “Laughter is better than medicine.” I think laught is one of medicines, and it is the best one. Laught can make people healthier and more vitality like my grandmother.
My grandmother is seventy-eight old, but she is very healthy. Because she laught everyday, never angry since I have memory. My grandmother is very love me, love my family, and love everyone. She is to favor special me. I am sure, I will spoiled by her. So when she sees people, she always laught. I think this is “to become a laughing stock of the learned people.” Therefore she always healthier than other people.
So I think laughter is the best medicine, it can make people healthier, isn’t it.
潤飾過的版本

86年度學測

說明：1.請依下列提示寫一篇英文作文在「答案卷」上。

2.文長以120字左右為原則，共20分。

提示：

你同意 “Laughter is better than medicine” 這種說法嗎？以你自己或親朋好友的經驗或你所知道的故事為例，加以說明。你的論點無論是正面或是反面都不會影響你的得分。
陳振男                     2010.06.23

I agree with the saying that laughter is better than medicine. I believe that laughter can make people healthier and more vital.

My grandmother’s example is a good testimony of what I believe (think). She is seventy-eight years old but still very healthy and energetic. Ever since I could remember, she has always had a smiling face and never got angry. She seldom has medicine when she is sick. She only takes medicine when she is in very bad shape. Even though she is sick, she never stops laughing and always maintains a happy mood. As a result, she always recovers very quickly.

When my grandmother smiles at people, most people would be influenced by her and smile back. She can always radiate a mood of warmth and happiness to the people around her. She also looks happier when she sees that people around her are happy. The more she laughs, the happier she is. The happier she is, the healthier she becomes. It’s a positive cycle.

Not only can laughter help one become healthier but it can also help people around him (her) become happier. In other words, laughter is good for both you and people around you. So, let’s laugh more and become healthier.
Grammar analysis


I agree with the saying that laughter is better than medicine.
(1)I agree with the saying.

(2)Laughter is better than medicine.
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that laughter is better than medicine
(1)+(3)               
(4)I agree with the saying that laughter is better than medicine.                   (名詞子句)當同位格

 (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)

I believe that laughter can make people healthier and more vital. 


(1)I believe something.

(2)Laughter can make people healthier and more vital.
第(1)句的『something else』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that laughter can make people healthier and more vital
(1)+(3)    

(4)I believe that laughter can make people healthier and more vital.    (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

My grandmother’s example is a good testimony of what I believe (think).
(1)My grandmother’s example is a good testimony of something.

(2)What do I believe (think)?
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)what I believe (think).
(1)+(3)       

(4)My grandmother’s example is a good testimony of what I believe (think).   

(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
            
She seldom has medicine when she is sick.
(1)She seldom has medicine.

(2)She is sick.
(1)+(2)

(3)She seldom has medicine when she is sick.
                        連接詞(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)


She only takes medicine when she is in very bad shape.
(1)She only takes medicine.

(2)She is in very bad shape. 

(1)+(2)

(3)She only takes medicine when she is in very bad shape.
連接詞 (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p. 234-235)

Even though she is sick, she never stops laughing and always maintains a happy mood.
(1)She is sick.

(2)She never stops laughing and always maintains a happy mood.
(1)+(2)

(3)Even though she is sick, she never stops laughing and 
連接詞        (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.238-239)
always maintains a happy mood.                      

When my grandmother smiles at people, most people would be influenced by her and smile back.
(1)My grandmother smiles at people.

(2)Most people would be influenced by her and smile back.
(1)+(2)

(3)When my grandmother smiles at people, most people 
連接詞 (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p. 234-235)
would be influenced by her and smile back.

She also looks happier when she sees that people around her are happy.
(1)She also looks happier.

(2)She sees something.

(3)People around her are happy.
第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that people around her are happy
(1)+(4)     (to)  

(5)She sees that people around her are happy.
          (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
(1)+(5)                                       

(5)She also looks happier when she sees that people around her are happy.          連接詞    (副詞子句)
(旋元佑文法 p. 234-235)

Not only can laughter help one become healthier but it can also help people around him (her) become happier.
(1)Laughter can help one become healthier
(2)Laughter can help people around him (her) something.
(3)He(She) can become happier.
第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that he(she) can become happier.
(1)+(4)     (to)  
                                   (to)
(5)Laughter can help people around him (her) that he(she) can become happier. (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(after『help』, we can use object + infinitive (with or without『to』)

(Practical English Usage,  p.223)

(1)+(5)                                       

(6)Laughter can not only help one become healthier but also help people around him (her) become happier.

(7)Not only can laughter help one become healthier but it can also help people around him (her) become happier.
 (旋元佑文法 p. 433-434)
86年度學測

說明：1.請依下列提示寫一篇英文作文在「答案卷」上。

2.文長以120字左右為原則，共20分。

提示：

你同意 “Laughter is better than medicine” 這種說法嗎？以你自己或親朋好友的經驗或你所知道的故事為例，加以說明。你的論點無論是正面或是反面都不會影響你的得分。
鄭伃倩                        2010.06.23

Somebody take medicine because they are sick. “Hypochondria” is also a sickness so it need to control by taking medicine. I had a classmate when I was an elementary school student. She thought that no one wanted to be friends with her.

Often, she didn’t go to school because she went to play with the people who didn’t want to go to school. She thought that those people with her friends. Those people left her bit by bit, that left her get sick. So she needs to control by taking medicine now. In fact, she merely not pleased. So we just thought that making her happy, maybe she will feel better, and she didn’t take medicine. After, laughter becomes the best way for her, and she won’t take any medicine from now on.

I think as long as you are happy anything will be good.
潤飾過的版本

86年度學測

說明：1.請依下列提示寫一篇英文作文在「答案卷」上。

2.文長以120字左右為原則，共20分。

提示：

你同意 “Laughter is better than medicine” 這種說法嗎？以你自己或親朋好友的經驗或你所知道的故事為例，加以說明。你的論點無論是正面或是反面都不會影響你的得分。
鄭伃倩                        2010.06.23

Although the great majority of people take medicine when they are sick, I deeply believe that laughter is better than medicine.

I had an elementary school classmate who thought that no one wanted to be friends with her at school. So, she didn’t like to go to school and often skipped school to play with kids like herself. Their happy time of playing together didn’t last long. Soon those kids left her one after another. Since then, she cried often and didn’t like to be with people. She would stay in her room for a whole day without speaking a word. Sometimes, she would stare at the wall for hours with an emotionless face. She was diagnosed as ‘Hypochondria’ and required to take medicine.

As her friends (Being her friends), we thought that we should do something to help her. We tried every means to cheer her up. We took her out hiking, swimming and for meals. We talked to her often. Gradually, we could see smiles appear on her face. As time went by, she laughed more. Also the more she laughed, the less medicine she took. Eventually, she didn’t need to take medicine.

The laughter on your face is the reflection of laughter in your cells. If your cells can have more ‘laughter’, they would be more lively, energetic and vibrant. As a result, you will be healthier.
86年度學測

說明：1.請依下列提示寫一篇英文作文在「答案卷」上。

2.文長以120字左右為原則，共20分。

提示：

你同意 “Laughter is better than medicine” 這種說法嗎？以你自己或親朋好友的經驗或你所知道的故事為例，加以說明。你的論點無論是正面或是反面都不會影響你的得分。
許官平                     2010.06.23

Laughter is a good medicine. Many years ago, my uncle got the cancer. In cancer, he was very pain. In many times, he wanted to kill hiself, but his children encouraged him. The found many doctors to cure my uncle. But no one could cure him. Finally a mentality doctor proposed our to make my uncle happy everyday. Then we were always to stay he laugh. Now, he is laugh everyday, and he become healthy more. The laughter is, the more healthy is. 

I used to see a man and a woman. The man who was poor didn’t eat medicine. Because he was laugh. The woman who was rich ate many medicine. Because she was serious.
Sometimes, we don’t have to eat any medicine. Because we are just laugh out. Laughter is the best.

潤飾過的版本

86年度學測

說明：1.請依下列提示寫一篇英文作文在「答案卷」上。

2.文長以120字左右為原則，共20分。

提示：

你同意 “Laughter is better than medicine” 這種說法嗎？以你自己或親朋好友的經驗或你所知道的故事為例，加以說明。你的論點無論是正面或是反面都不會影響你的得分。
許官平                     2010.06.23

I agree with the statement that ‘laughter is better than medicine.’
Many years ago, my uncle got stomach cancer. He had a surgery and had to go through many times of chemotherapy and radiotherapy (had to be treated multiple times with chemotherapy and radiotherapy). He lost his hair, vomited often, had ulcers in his mouth, and lost his appetite. He became very weak. It was a painful experience. He even thought about killing himself. His children tried very hard to lift his spirit (encourage him). They accompanied him through all the treatments, took him to the park to get sunshine in warm winter afternoons, and took him to the countryside to enjoy the beauty of nature. (They took him to all the treatments required as well as taking him often to the park to get sunshine in the warm winter afternoons. They would also take him to countryside to enjoy the beauty of nature.) But the progress of treatment was very slow and the effectiveness was very insignificant. (his treatment was very slow and the effects were very small and insignificant). He always frowned even though all the hard work his doctors and children had tried. He also complained a lot about everything. (Despite (=In spite of) the doctors or his children’s efforts, my uncle remained sad and complained a lot about everything.)

Finally, he gave up all the painful treatment, changed his life styles and changed his thinking after he read some books about natural treatment and heard some testimonies by some cancer survivors who had adopted the natural treatment and become cured. (he gave up all the painful treatment and changed his life style. My uncle began reading about natural treatment and heard testimonies from people who had survived cancer through natural remedies. He decided to adapt this natural treatment to his own life by changing his diet. ) He began to eat a little meat and fish but a lot of vegetables. He started doing exercise. Most importantly, he accepted the truth that he was a cancer patient and there was a chance that he could not be cured. (he accepted that he had cancer but there was a chance that he could not be cured.) Once he had changed his mind, he started enjoying every moment he owned. (Once he had changed his thinking and lifestyle, he started enjoying every moment of his life.) He stopped complaining. He laughed more. The more laughter he had, the healthier he became. Now, he is totally cancer free.

I deeply believe that laughter is better than medicine after I saw my uncle’s case.( seeing its success in my uncle’s life through cancer.)
Grammar analysis


I agree with the statement that ‘laughter is better than medicine.’
(1)I agree with the statement.

(2)Laughter is better than medicine.

(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that laughter is the best medicine

(1)+(3)               

(4)I agree with the statement that ‘laughter is better than medicine.’              (名詞子句)當同位格
                      (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)
His children tried very hard to lift his spirit (encourage him).
(1)His children tried very hard.

(2)They could lift his spirit (encourage him).
(1)+(2)

(3)His children tried very hard so that (in order that) they could lift his spirit (encourage him). 連接詞

(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.236-237)

They accompanied him through all the treatments, took him to the park to get sunshine in warm winter afternoons, and took him to the countryside to enjoy the beauty of nature.
(1)They accompanied him through all the treatments.

(2)They took him to the park.
(3)He could get sunshine in warm winter afternoons.

(4)They took him to the countryside.

(5)He could enjoy the beauty of nature.
(2)+(3)           to
(6)They took him to the park so that he could get sunshine in warm winter afternoons.    連接詞     (副詞子句)
(旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)
(4)+(5)                to
(7)They took him to the countryside so that he could enjoy the beauty of nature.                 連接詞     (副詞子句)
(旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)
(1)+(6)+(7)

(8)They accompanied him through all the treatments, they took him to the park to get sunshine in warm winter afternoons, and they took him to the countryside to enjoy the beauty of nature.
            
They took him to all the treatments required as well as taking him often to the park to get sunshine in the warm winter afternoons.

(1)They took him to all the treatments as well as something.

(2)They took him often to the park. 
(3)The treatments were required.
(4)He could get sunshine in the warm winter afternoons.
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。惟因第(1)句中『something』的前面有介係詞『as』，須借用『the fact』來形成同位格。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(5)that they took him often to the park.
(1)+(6)                         (their)
(6)They took him to all the treatments as well as the fact that they    
taking

took him often to the park.

(名詞子句)(當the fact 的同位格)
(＊＊也可解釋為＊＊)

(7)They took him to all the treatments as well as the fact which is 
(their) taking                               (關係子句)
that they took him often to the park.

 (名詞子句) (當前面關係子句的補語)

(旋元佑文法 p.215, 340-341, 408-409, 414) (常春藤英文文法(上) p.21-25)
第(7)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『the treatment』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(8)which were required
(7)+(8)               

(9)They took him to all the treatments which were required as well as taking him often to the park.  (關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
(9)+(4)

(10)They took him to all the treatments required as well as taking 
                                      to

him often to the park in order that (so that) he could get sunshine in the warm winter afternoons. 連接詞        (副詞子句)
(旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)
            
He always frowned even though all the hard work his doctors and children had tried.
(1)He always frowned.

(2)All the hard work his doctors and children had tried.
(1)+(2)

He always frowned even though all the hard work his doctors and children had tried.  連接詞     (副詞子句) 
(旋元佑文法 p.238-239)

He gave up all the painful treatment, changed his life styles and changed his thinking after he read some books about natural treatment and heard some testimonies by some cancer survivors who had adopted the natural treatment and become cured.
(1)He gave up all the painful treatment, changed his life styles and changed his thinking.
(2)He read some books about natural treatment and heard some testimonies by some cancer survivors.

(3)The cancer survivors had adopted the natural treatment and become cured.
第(2)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『cancer survivors』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(4)who had adopted the natural treatment and become cured
(2)+(4)               

(5)He read some books about natural treatment and heard some testimonies by some cancer survivors who had adopted the natural treatment and become cured.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
(1)+(5)

(6)He gave up all the painful treatment, changed his life styles and 
changed his thinking after he read some books about natural 
連接詞(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)

He decided to adapt this natural treatment to his own life by changing his diet. 
(1)He decided something.

(2)He would adapt this natural treatment to his own life by something.
(3)He changed his diet. 

第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。惟因第(2)句中『something』的前面有介係詞『by』，須借用『the fact』來形成同位格。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that he changed his diet
(1)+(6)       

(5)He would adapt this natural treatment to his own life by 
        (his) changing
the fact that he changed his diet.   

(名詞子句)(當the fact 的同位格)

(＊＊也可解釋為＊＊)

(6) He would adapt this natural treatment to his own life by 
                (his) changing
the fact which is that he changed his diet..         

(關係子句)  (名詞子句) (當前面關係子句的補語)

(旋元佑文法 p.215, 340-341, 408-409, 414) (常春藤英文文法(上) p.21-25)
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(6)句的整句，因此可將第(6)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(7)that he would adapt this natural treatment to his own life by changing his diet
(1)+(7)    

                    to

(8)He decided that he would adapt this natural treatment to his own life by changing his diet.
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)


He accepted the truth that he was a cancer patient and there was a chance that he could not be cured.

(1)He accepted the truth.

(2)He was a cancer patient and there was a chance.

(3)He could not be cured.

(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that he was a cancer patient and there was a chance
(1)+(4)               
(5)He accepted the truth that he was a cancer patient and there was a chance.         (名詞子句)當同位格

 (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(6)that he could not be cured

(5)+(6)               
(5)He accepted the truth that he was a cancer patient and there was a chance that he could not be cured.         

(名詞子句)當同位格(旋元佑文法 p.215-216)
He accepted that he had cancer but there was a chance that he could not be cured.
(1)He accepted something.

(2)He had cancer but there was a chance.

(3)He could not be cured.

(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that he could not be cured

(2)+(4)               
(5)He he had cancer but there was a chance that he could not be cured.                            (名詞子句)當同位格

 (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(5)句的整句，因此可將第(5)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(6)that he had cancer but there was a chance that he could not be cured
(1)+(6)     (to)  

(7)He accepted (that) he had cancer but there was a chance that he could not be cured. (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)

Once he had changed his mind, he started enjoying every moment he owned.
(1)He had changed his mind.

(2)He started something.
(3)He enjoyed every moment. 
(4)He owned the moment.
第(3)和第(4)有個重複的交集點『moment』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(4)     (變成關係子句)

(5)he owned which
為將兩句結合成一句複句，因此須要將關係代名詞「which」前移

(5)     (關係代名詞「which」前移)

(6)which he owned
(2)+(6)

(7)He enjoyed every moment (which) he owned.
(關係子句)restrictive
(關係代名詞which作受詞，須往前移，因此可以省略) (旋元佑文法 252-255)
(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(7)句的整句，因此可將第(7)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(7)   (變成名詞子句)

(8)that he enjoyed every moment (which) he owned
(2)+(8)     

                  enjoying

(9)He started (that) he enjoyed every moment (which) he owned.

         (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
(1)+(9)

(10)Once he had changed his mind, he started enjoying every 
連接詞 (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.235-236)
moment he owned. 

I deeply believe that laughter is better than medicine after I saw my uncle’s case.

(1)I deeply believe something.

(2)Laughter is better than medicine.
(3)I saw my uncle’s case. 
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that laughter is better than medicine
(1)+(4)     

                  enjoying

(5)I deeply believe (that) laughter is better than medicine.
                (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
(5)+(3)

(6)I deeply believe that laughter is better than medicine after I saw my uncle’s case.                              連接詞
(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.235-236)
92學年度指考
說明：1. 依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。
2. 文長約120至150個單詞左右。
3. 未依提示書寫各段主題句扣兩分。
提示︰小考、段考、複習考、畢業考、甚至校外其它各種大大小小的考試，已成為高中學生生活中不可或缺的一部份。請寫一篇120至150個單詞左右的英文作文，文分兩段，第一段以Exams of all kinds have become a necessary part of my high school life.為主題句；第二段則以The most unforgettable exam I have ever taken is…為開頭並加以發展。

張智淵                     2010.07.16
In our life, there are always a lot of exams everywhere. Exams of all kinds have become a necessary part of my high school life. We go to school everyday and listen to teachers to learn new knowledge, information and things. After that, taking exams is a pretty good way to know whether you learn it well or not. Then it can show us where we should practice more.

The most unforgettable exam I have ever taken is the one held by my English teacher. He would write down five sentences we had to remember. The next day, we would write them on the paper in the English class. But if you think it is that easy, you are fully wrong! When you were taking the test, my English teacher played rock and roll musics, which can exercise our ability how can you do the things well in a bad environment. When the musics finished, he would take off the test papers. In the first half year, all of the students in our class hated this weird way of taking tests. But later we found out it was making us become better and better on remembering things. So, I think the most important thing about exams is not how high the grade you have. It is what you learn from them. 

              潤飾過的版本

92學年度指考
說明：1. 依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。
2. 文長約120至150個單詞左右。
3. 未依提示書寫各段主題句扣兩分。
提示︰小考、段考、複習考、畢業考、甚至校外其它各種大大小小的考試，已成為高中學生生活中不可或缺的一部份。請寫一篇120至150個單詞左右的英文作文，文分兩段，第一段以Exams of all kinds have become a necessary part of my high school life.為主題句；第二段則以The most unforgettable exam I have ever taken is…為開頭並加以發展。

張智淵                     2010.07.16

In our educational (school) years, there are always a lot of exams to complete . (there are always a lot of exams, such as quizzes, mid-term exams, final exams, review exams and graduation exams.) (Therefore,) exams of all kinds have become a necessary part of my high school life. We go to school every day to listen to teachers in order to learn new knowledge and information. (Every day, we go to school and listen to teachers’ lectures to learn new knowledge). Afterwards, exams are a method to show whether one learns well or not. (After we take the classes for some time, we sit (take) exams to determine whether we have learned the subjects well or not.) It can also show where we should practice more. ( The results of the exams show us where we should study or practice more. (which parts (or areas) of the subjects we should study or practice more.)
The most unforgettable exam I have ever taken was the one held by my English teacher. He would write down five sentences that we had to remember. The next day, we would write them out on paper in the English class. (One day, he would write five sentences on the blackboard and ask us to memorize them. The next day, we would be asked to write them down from memory.) But if you think that was going to be easy, you are indeed mistaken. (You may think it was easy. No, you are totally wrong!) When (While) we were taking the test (exam), our English teacher played rock and roll (rock ‘n’ roll) music, which would exercise our ability to do things well in a bad environment. (a practice which he claimed would train our ability to do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment). When the music finished, our teacher would take away the test papers. (immediately he would collect the papers.) In the first half year, all (of) the students in our class hated this weird way of taking tests (exams). But later we found out it was making us become better and better at remembering things. (However, later we realized that it helped us (to) become better at remembering (recalling) things.) So, I think the most important thing about exams is not how high a grade you have (how high your grade is). It is what you learn from them. (Rather, it is what you learn from them.)



Grammar analysis


In our educational years, there are always a lot of exams to complete.

(1)There are always a lot of exams in our educational years.

(2)We should complete the exams.

第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『exams』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(3)We should complete which
為將兩句結合成一句複句，因此須要將關係代名詞「which」前移

(3)     (關係代名詞「which」前移)

(4)which we should complete
(1)+(4)                to
(5)There are always a lot of exams which we should complete in our educational years.             (關係子句)restrictive
(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
      (倒裝)

(6)In our educational years, there are always a lot of exams to complete.

In our educational (school) years, there are always a lot of exams, such as quizzes, mid-term exams, final exams, review exams and graduation exams.
(1)There are always a lot of exams in our school years.

(2)The exams are such as quizzes, mid-term exams, final exams, review exams and graduation exams.

    (倒裝)

(3)In our educational (school) years, there are always a lot of exams.
第(2)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『exams』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(4)which are such as quizzes, mid-term exams, final exams, review exams and graduation exams
(3)+(4)                
(5)In our educational (school) years, there are always a lot of exams, which are such as quizzes, mid-term exams, final exams, review exams and graduation exams.   (關係子)nonrestrictive

We go to school everyday to listen to teachers in order to learn new knowledge and information.

(1)We go to school everyday.

(2)We can listen to teachers.
(3)We can learn new knowledge and information.
(1)+(2)          to
(4)We go to school everyday so that we can listen to teachers.

連接詞   (副詞子句)
 (旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)
(4)+(3)               
(5)We go to school everyday to listen to teachers in order that we 
to                                      連接詞
can learn new knowledge and information.       
(副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)

Exams are a method to show whether one learns well or not.
(1)Exams are a method.

(2)The method can show something.

(3)Does one learn well or not?
第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『method』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(4)which can show something
(1)+(4)

                         to

(5)Exams are a method which can show something.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
第(5)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(5)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(6)whether one learns well or not
(5)+(6)       

(7)Exams are a method to show whether one learns well or not.
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

After we take the classes for some time, we sit (take) exams to determine whether we have learned the subjects well or not.
(1)We take the classes for some time.

(2)We sit (take) exams.

(3)We can determine something.

(4)Have we learned the subjects well or not?
(2)+(3)                 to
(5)We sit (take) exams so that (in order that) we can determine something.           連接詞              (副詞子句)
(旋元佑文法 p.313-314, 384-385)

第(5)句的『something』指的就是第(4)句的整句，因此可將第(4)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(5)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(4)   (變成名詞子句)

(6)whether we have learned the subjects well or not
(5)+(6)       

(7)We sit (take) exams to determine whether we have learned the subjects well or not.             (名詞子句)當受詞
(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
(1)+(7)

(9)After we take the classes for some time, we sit (take) exams to 
連接詞 (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)
determine whether we have learned the subjects well or not.
            
It can also show where we should practice more.
(1)It can also show something.

(2)Where should we practice more?
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)where we should practice more
(1)+(3)       

(4)It can also show where we should practice more.
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

The results of the exams show us which parts (or areas) of the subjects we should study or practice more.
(1)The results of the exams show us something.

(2)Which parts (or areas) of the subjects should we study or practice more?
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)which parts (or areas) of the subjects we should study or practice more
(1)+(3)       

(4)The results of the exams show us which parts (or areas) of the subjects we should study or practice more.
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

The most unforgettable exam I have ever taken was the one held by my English teacher.
(1)The most unforgettable exam was the one.

(2)I have ever taken the exam.

(3)The one was held by my English teacher.
第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『exam』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(4)I have ever taken that
為將兩句結合成一句複句，因此須要將關係代名詞「that」前移

(4)     (關係代名詞「that」前移)

(5)that I have ever taken
(1)+(5)

(6)The most unforgettable exam (that) I have ever taken was the one.                       (關係子句)restrictive

(關係代名詞which作受詞，須往前移，因此可以省略) (旋元佑文法 252-255)
(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
第(6)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『one』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(7)which was held by my English teacher
(6)+(7)               

(8)The most unforgettable exam I have ever taken was the one which was held by my English teacher.
(關係子句)restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
            
He would write down five sentences that we had to remember.
(1)He would write down five sentences.

(2)We had to remember the sentences.
第(1)和第(2)有個重複的交集點『sentences』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)     (變成關係子句)

(3)we had to remember that
為將兩句結合成一句複句，因此須要將關係代名詞「that」前移

(3)     (關係代名詞「that」前移)

(4)that I have ever taken
(1)+(4)

(5)He would write down five sentences that we had to remember.
                        (關係子句)restrictive

(關係代名詞which作受詞，須往前移，因此可以省略) (旋元佑文法 252-255)
(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
            
The next day, we would be asked to write them down from memory.
(1)We would be asked something the next day.

(2)We should write them down from memory.

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)that we should write them down from memory
(1)+(3)        to  

(4)We would be asked that we should write them down from memory the next day. (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)

But if you think that was going to be easy, you are indeed mistaken.
(1)You think something.

(2)That was going to be easy.
(3)You are indeed mistaken
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that that was going to be easy
(1)+(4)        
(5)You think (that) that was going to be easy. 
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)

(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
(5)+(3)

(6)But if you think that was going to be easy, you are indeed 
連接詞 (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.235-236)
mistaken.

While we were taking the test, our English teacher played rock and roll music, which would exercise our ability to do things well in a bad environment.
(1)We were taking the test.

(2)Our English teacher played rock and roll music.

(3)It(指以下(5)) would exercise our ability.
(4)We could do things well in a bad environment.
(1)+(2)

(5)While  we were taking the test, our English teacher played 
連接詞   (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)
rock and roll music.

第(5)和第(3)有個重複的交集點『it和(5)整句』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)     (變成關係子句)

(6)which would exercise our ability
(5)+(6)               

(7)When we were taking the test, our English teacher played rock and roll music, which would exercise our ability.
(關係子句)nonrestrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
(4)   (變成名詞子句)

(8)that we could do things well in a bad environment
(7)+(8)               
(9)When we were taking the test, our English teacher played rock 
                                              to

and roll music, which would exercise our ability that we could do things well in a bad environment.                    

(名詞子句)當同位格 (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)

When we were taking the test, our English teacher played rock and roll music, a practice which he claimed would train our ability to do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment.
(1)We were taking the test.

(2)Our English teacher played rock and roll music.

(3)It(指以下(7)) was a practice.
(4)He claimed something.

(5)The practice would train our ability.

(6)We could do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad)  environment.
(1)+(2)

(7)When  we were taking the test, our English teacher played 
連接詞   (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)
rock and roll music.

(6)   (變成名詞子句)

(8)that we could do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment
(5)+(8)                to
(9)The practice would train our ability that we could do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment.             (名詞子句)當同位格 (旋元佑文法 p.215-216)
第(4)句的『something else』指的就是第(9)句的整句，因此可將第(9)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(4)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(9)   (變成名詞子句)

(10)that the practice would train our ability to do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment.
(4)+(9)    

(11)He claimed (that) the practice would train our ability to do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment.
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
第(3)和第(11)有個重複的交集點『practice』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(11)     (變成關係子句)

(12)which he claimed would train our ability to do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment
(3)+(12)               

(13)It was a practice which he claimed would train our ability to do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment.
(關係子句) restrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)
第(7)和第(13)有個重複的交集點『it和(7)整句』，由此建立『關係』，進而可以用關係子句的方式將兩句結合成一句複句。
(13)     (變成關係子句)

(14)which was a practice which he claimed would train our ability to do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment
(7)+(14)               

(15)When we were taking the test, our English teacher played rock and roll music, which was a practice which he claimed would train our ability to do things well in a disadvantageous (a bad) environment.      (關係子句)nonrestrictive

(常春藤英文文法(上) p.144-148) (東華當代英文法(下) p.94-96)

(旋元佑文法 266-269) (Focus on Grammar, p.227)關係子句的簡化(旋元佑文法 p.326-328)

When the music finished, our teacher would take away the test papers.
(1)The music finished.

(2)Our teacher would take away the test papers.
(1)+(8)

(5)When  the music finished, our teacher would take away the 
連接詞   (副詞子句) (旋元佑文法 p.234-235)
test papers.
            
In the first half year, all of the students in our class hated this weird way of taking tests.
(1)All of the students in our class hated this weird way of something in the first half year.

(2)We took tests.

(1)     (倒裝)

(3)In the first half year, all of the students in our class hated this weird way of something.
第(3)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(3)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。惟因第(3)句中『something』的前面有介係詞『of』，須借用『the fact』來形成同位格。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)that we take tests
(3)+(4)       

(5)In the first half year, all of the students in our class hated this 
                    (our) taking

weird way of the fact that we took tests.     

(名詞子句)(當the fact 的同位格)

(＊＊也可解釋為＊＊)

(6)In the first half year, all of the students in our class hated this 
                              (our) taking

weird way of the fact  which is  that we took tests.         

(關係子句) (名詞子句) (當前面關係子句的補語)

(旋元佑文法 p.215, 340-341, 408-409, 414) (常春藤英文文法(上) p.21-25)
            
But later we found out it was making us become better and better at remembering things.
(1)But later we found out something.

(2)It was making us something.

(3)We could become better and better at something.

(4)We remembered things.

第(3)句的『something』指的就是第(4)句的整句，因此可將第(4)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(3)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。惟因第(3)句中『something』的前面有介係詞『at』，須借用『the fact』來形成同位格。
(4)   (變成名詞子句)

(5)that we remembered things
(3)+(5)                   (our)
(6)We could become better and better at the fact that we 
remembering

remembered things.                        

(名詞子句)(當the fact 的同位格)

(＊＊也可解釋為＊＊)

(7)We could become better and better at the fact which is that we 
remembering                          (關係子句)
remembered things.         

(名詞子句) (當前面關係子句的補語)

(旋元佑文法 p.215, 340-341, 408-409, 414) (常春藤英文文法(上) p.21-25)
第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(7)句的整句，因此可將第(7)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(7)   (變成名詞子句)

(8)that we could become better and better at remembering things
(2)+(8)     

                       (to)

(9)It was making us that we could become better and better at remembering things. (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)        
(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
(Certain verbs are followed by object + infinitive without『to』. They include let, make, see, hear, feel, watch and notice.)

(Practical English Usage, Third Edition,  p.256)
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(9)句的整句，因此可將第(9)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(9)   (變成名詞子句)

(10)that it was making us become better and better at remembering things
(1)+(10)     

                       (to)

(11)But later we found out (that) it was making us become better and better at remembering things.
(名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)        
(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
            
I think the most important thing about exams is not how high a grade you have.
(1)I think something.

(2)The most important thing about exams is not something.

(3)How high a grade do you have?

第(2)句的『something』指的就是第(3)句的整句，因此可將第(3)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(2)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(3)   (變成名詞子句)

(4)how high a grade you have
(2)+(4)     

                       (to)

(5)The most important thing about exams is not how high a grade you have. (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(5)句的整句，因此可將第(5)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(5)   (變成名詞子句)

(6)that the most important thing about exams is not how high a grade you have
(1)+(6)                            

(7)I think (that) the most important thing about exams is not how high a grade you have. (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
(When a noun clause beginning with that functions as direct object, the word that may be omitted.) (Focus on Grammar p.255)
            
It is what you learn from them.
(1)It is something.

(2)What do you learn from them?

第(1)句的『something』指的就是第(2)句的整句，因此可將第(2)句變成名詞子句，再將名詞子句放入第(1)句中『something』的位置，進而將兩句結合成一句複句。
(2)   (變成名詞子句)

(3)what you learn from them
(1)+(3)     

(4)It is what you learn from them.
 (名詞子句)當受詞(旋元佑文法 p. 212-215)
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說明︰1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

　　　2.文長120個單詞(words)左右。

提示：請根據以下三張連環圖畫的內容，以 “In the English class last week, …” 開頭，將圖中主角所經歷的事件作一合理的敘述。


許官平                     2010.07.19

In the English class last week, I was very tired on the morning. Because I didn’t sleep well yesterday. I was to dreams. First, I dream a girl with me to take risks. We arrive a bay. In the bay, have rare-birds which make people sleeping. And have sea animal. They can attack people. We are almost a boat to capsize. Suddenly I feel I have power. And I fight the sea animal. The girl make the magic have it catch fire. Abruptly the sea is roaring waves and billows that swell up to heaven. And Neptune appears before my eyes. Neptune saves our, and we pass the bay.

Second the girl with me are sent to a big labyrinth as big as an earth. The labyrinth is dark, cold, wet. We fear in the dark. The labyrinth has different a sample. It is like a playground, a fort, a pyramid…. We walk a place which has sky, flowers, trees. But we are in the labyrinth. Why is there sky, flowers, trees? Many things are impossible, but the magic labyrinth is possible.

In the English class, I was tired. So I have fallen asleep. Then I did a dream again. I dream I become a teacher. I find a student sleeping. When I wake up the student, I was waked up by my teacher.

潤飾過的版本

94年度學測

說明︰1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

　　　2.文長120個單詞(words)左右。

提示：請根據以下三張連環圖畫的內容，以 “In the English class last week, …” 開頭，將圖中主角所經歷的事件作一合理的敘述。


許官平                     2010.07.19

In the English class last week, I was very tired because I didn’t sleep well the previous night. I fell asleep and started to dream. 

In the dreams, I was on a boat with a girl. We were looking for adventure. (I dreamed that I took a boat with a girl to look for adventure.) We arrived at a bay. There were birds of rare species. Those birds had magic to make people fall asleep. Also, there were sea animals. They liked to attack people. Our boat capsized because of big waves. Luckily, there was a log floating close by. We were able to reach it and held onto it. The sea animals kept attacking us. I felt I had tremendous power. I fought back. Also, the girl used her magic to make the sea animals catch on fire. Suddenly, the sea was billowing and roaring. The waves were up to the heaven. All of a sudden, Neptune appeared in front of (before) us and escorted us through the bay to the land.

Later we realized that we were trapped in a labyrinth as big as earth. The labyrinth was dark, cold, and wet. We were frightened there. The shape of the labyrinth kept changing all the time, from a playground to a fort, to a pyramid…. We walked to a place where there was sky, flowers, and trees. I was confused about how a labyrinth had flowers and trees. Many impossible things became possible in the labyrinth.

The next moment, I became an English teacher. I was teaching English while most of the students were sleeping. I tried to raise my voice and tell jokes to wake them up, but I failed. I became very angry. The more I taught, the angrier I became. Finally, I couldn’t take it anymore. I yelled at them, “Wake up.” When I woke up, I heard my English teacher yelling at me. ‘Wake up’. I blushed with embarrassment when I heard my classmates laughing loudly.
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      2.文長120個單詞(words)左右。
提示︰請根據以下三張連環圖畫的內容，以“One evening,…”開頭，寫一篇文章，描述圖中主角所經歷的事件，並提供合理的解釋與結局。


徐三原                     2010.07.28

One evening, I was invited to go to a wedding feast. I met many old friends. We have not been seen with one another for long time. So we chated and drank with together. For a while, the wedding feast ended at 10:00 p.m.

I kept away from the wedding feast. I was blind drunk and I who clouded in the mind walked on the road. Then, I wanted to call a taxi and I would be taken by the taxi driver to home. However, I saw a taxi. So, I called it. As a matter of fact, it wasn’t a taxi. And it was a police car. But I don’t know that. I just remembered that the car twinkled blue and red light…
The day after next. When I was sleeping, a man waked me up. However, I waked up. I saw the clock. “What. 8:00 a.m.? And, where am I ?” I sayed. Then, the man who was a police officer told me I was in the county police. After, I have ashamed and learn a lesson.

潤飾過的版本

93年度學測
說明︰1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

      2.文長120個單詞(words)左右。
提示︰請根據以下三張連環圖畫的內容，以“One evening,…”開頭，寫一篇文章，描述圖中主角所經歷的事件，並提供合理的解釋與結局。


徐三原                     2010.07.28

One evening, I was invited to a wedding banquet (feast/reception/dinner). (American use banquet or feast, but Australian use reception or dinner.) I met many old friends, whom we had not seen each other (one another) for a long time. (One evening, while at a wedding reception (or dinner), I met many…) We chatted and drank a lot together. The reception finished at 10:00 pm.  
By the time I left the reception, I was very (blind/dead) drunk . I walked on the road and my mind was clouded. All I wanted to do was to catch (hail/flag down) a taxi (to take me) home soon. I saw a taxi approach and waved. It ended up being a police car, not a taxi. I was too drunk to notice the blue and red lights flashing. 
The next day, a man in uniform woke (waked) me up. I looked at the clock. “What! 8:00 am? Where am I?” I yelled. The police officer told me that I had slept in a police station through the night. I felt ashamed and thought that I really must learn a lesson from this.

(I really have to learn from this.)(I hope I never do this again.) 
91年度指考



張智淵                        2010.07.28

If I won two million dollars in lottery, I would help the things that I think need to be solved now. The plan is I would spend five hundred thousand helping the poor families, eight hundred thousand protecting the environment and nature and the others building a good education system so that those who have the dreams but don’t get any chance or money to realize it could learn new things which may be useful and even could change their life and thoughts. There are always a lot of people who are waiting for our help. Don’t think you can’t do it. Though the money is not too much, it is still powerful for them. Just do it! And, as a morden person, we have to think about the pollutings made by us developing technologies.
Protecting the earth now is a very important thing. All of us should notice it and do our best to clean up the environment. But, the best way to solve all the problems is to educate people. Teach them useful skills so that they could get jobs more easily. Tell them what kinds of things may hurt our environment so we would cut down all polluting. Most important of all, we should tell them wrong from right. Learning is the best way to make them think. And then, dreams would not just be dreams because they would get power and be able to realize the dreams. They would be full of hope and think everything is worth to try. Due to the changes, the world would become better and nicer. The two milline dollars would not be just a personal income. It would be a lovely donate and could help the country and the world.
潤飾過的版本

91年度指考



張智淵                        2010.07.28

If I won two million dollars in the lottery, I would help the things that I think need to be solved now. The plan is I would spend five hundred thousand helping the poor families, eight hundred thousand protecting the natural environment and the rest building a good education system so that those who have the dreams but don’t have the opportunities  or money to realize it could learn new things which may be useful and could even change their lives and thoughts. There are always a lot of people who are waiting for our help. Don’t think you can’t do it. Though the money is not too much, it is still powerful for them. Just do it! And, as a modern person, we have to think about the pollution made by us as a result of humans developing technologies.
Protecting the earth is a very important thing now. All of us should notice it and do our best to clean up the environment. But, the best way to solve all the problems is to educate people. Teach them useful skills so that they can find employment more easily. Also, educate people about things and activities that harm our environment so that we can cut down on polluting and damaging. Most important of all, we should teach them wrong from right. Education is the best way to make them think. And then, this would allow dreams to not just be dreams, because people would be empowered to realize their dreams. They would be full of hope and think everything is worth trying (have courage to take every opportunity they can to reach their goals). Due to the changes, the world would become better and nicer. The two million dollars would not be just a personal income. It would be a useful (practical) donation and that would help the country and the world.
90年度學測
說明︰1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

2.文長120字左右。
提示︰

請以 “Something Interesting about a Classmate of Mine” 為題，寫出有關你一位同學的一件趣事。這位同學可以是你任何時期的同學，例如中學、小學或幼稚園的同學。
張智淵                        2010.08.20

In the elementary school, I was in the third class of 6rh grade, There were twenty four students in my class. One of my classmates was special, He was not good at subjects, but his planting was very good. He often did something funny to let us laugh for a long time. We all called him Red Chicken because his most popular action is moving like a chicken. Once, our home-room teacher asked us to clean the classroom because of the coming activity. Then, he went to his officer. When we were cleaning it unhappily, Red Chicken was trying to cheer us up and made us happy. He took the cover of the trash can in his left hand. He acted he was fighting to someone, defending the hitting and kicking that guy’s feet. We all stopped to watch his show and laugh loudly. But suddenly, everyone was watching him quietly and didn’t move except him. The actor was still doing his job. Later, when he found something strange and turned back, he saw our teacher was standing behind him！ I thought our teacher was angry, but his show was too ridiculous. So, our teacher said,“Red Chicken, raise the cover of the trash can until leaving school.” Although we had to share his cleaning work and watched our teacher’s serious face for a while, everyone got more joys and laughter due to this ridiculous “order.” After that, all of my classmates, except him, learned a lesson that if you want to play really high, be sure you know whether the danger is coming. But for Dear Red Chicken, this happens too often, so he is still doing everything by his style. Now, when we go to the class reunion, he always says,“I will fight back to those who have watched my show.”
潤飾過的版本
90年度學測
說明︰1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。

2.文長120字左右。
提示︰

請以 “Something Interesting about a Classmate of Mine” 為題，寫出有關你一位同學的一件趣事。這位同學可以是你任何時期的同學，例如中學、小學或幼稚園的同學。
張智淵                        2010.08.20

In the elementary school, I was in the third class of 6th grade. There were twenty four students in my class. One of my classmates was special. He was not good at subjects, but his humor was very good (he had a good sense of humor). He often did something funny to make us laugh for a long time. We all called him Red Chicken because his most popular action was moving like a chicken. Once, our home-room teacher asked us to clean the classroom because of a coming activity. Then, he went to his office. When we were cleaning it and feeling a little unhappy, Red Chicken was trying to cheer us up and make us happy. He took the cover off the trash can in his left hand. He acted as though he was fighting someone, defending by hitting and kicking another’s feet. We all stopped to watch his show and laughed loudly. But suddenly, everyone watching him became quietly and didn’t move. The actor was still doing his performance. Soon, when he found something strange and turned back, he saw our teacher standing behind him (he observed something was strange and turned back to see our teacher standing behind him)! We thought our teacher was angry, but this show was too comical. So, our teacher said, ”Red Chicken, raise the cover of the trash can until school leaving time.” Although we had to share the cleaning work and watched our teacher’s serious face for a while, everyone enjoyed the moments with laughter due to this ridiculous “order.” After that, all of our classmates, except him, learned the lesson ‘that if you want to play up’, be sure you know whether dangers are about. For dear ‘Red Chicken’, this happened too often, so he continues doing everything in his own style. Now, when we go to class reunions, he always says,“I will fight back those who have watched my show.”
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提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。























提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。
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提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。
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提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。
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提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。
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提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。























提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。























提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。























提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長約120至150個單詞左右。





提示:


文章以“If I won two million dollars in lottery , I would help…”開始,敘述你或妳獲得台灣樂透彩新台幣兩百萬元之後,最想把全數金額拿去幫助的人,機構或組織,並寫出理由。














提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長約120至150個單詞左右。





提示:


文章以“If I won two million dollars in lottery , I would help…”開始,敘述你或妳獲得台灣樂透彩新台幣兩百萬元之後,最想把全數金額拿去幫助的人,機構或組織,並寫出理由。
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提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。























提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。
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提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長約120至150個單詞左右。





提示:


文章以“If I won two million dollars in lottery , I would help…”開始,敘述你或妳獲得台灣樂透彩新台幣兩百萬元之後,最想把全數金額拿去幫助的人,機構或組織,並寫出理由。














提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長約120至150個單詞左右。





提示:


文章以“If I won two million dollars in lottery , I would help…”開始,敘述你或妳獲得台灣樂透彩新台幣兩百萬元之後,最想把全數金額拿去幫助的人,機構或組織,並寫出理由。








提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。




















提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長至少120個單詞。
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提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長約120至150個單詞左右。





提示:


文章以“If I won two million dollars in lottery , I would help…”開始,敘述你或妳獲得台灣樂透彩新台幣兩百萬元之後,最想把全數金額拿去幫助的人,機構或組織,並寫出理由。














提示:1.依提示在「答案卷」上寫一篇英文作文。


     2.文長約120至150個單詞左右。





提示:


文章以“If I won two million dollars in lottery , I would help…”開始,敘述你或妳獲得台灣樂透彩新台幣兩百萬元之後,最想把全數金額拿去幫助的人,機構或組織,並寫出理由。
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